



OAKLANDS FARM SOLAR PARK

Applicant: Oaklands Farm Solar Ltd

Environmental Statement

Appendix 4.4 – Outline Operational Environmental Management Plan

January 2024

Document Ref: EN010122/APP/6.1/Appx 4.4

Revision: -

Planning Act 2008

Infrastructure Planning (Application: Prescribed Forms and

Procedure) Regulations 2009 - 5(2)(a)



Oaklands Farm Solar Park Environmental Statement Volume 3 Appendix 4.4: Outline

Appendix 4.4: Outline Operational Environmental Management Plan

Final report
Prepared by LUC
January 2024



Oaklands Farm Solar Park

Outline Operational Environmental Management Plan

Client: BayWa

Project/Proposal No: 5037 - 1584

Version: V.1

Date: 2024-01-31





Document Information

Project Name: Oaklands Farm Solar Park **Document Title:** Outline Operational Environmental Management Plan Client Name: BayWa **Document Status:** Draft Author: G. Walton Reviewed: E. Stella Approved: E. Stella Date: 2024-01-31 Version: V.1 Project/Proposal Number: 5037 - 1584

Revision History

ITPEnergised Office:

Version	Date	Authored	Reviewed	Approved	Notes
V0.1	2023-08-31	G. Walton	E. Stella	E. Stella	Draft for client comment
V0.2	2023-11-30	H. Barnikel	E. Stella	E. Stella	
V0.3	2024-01-25	H. Barnikel	E. Stella	E. Stella	
V0.4	2024-01-31	H. Barnikel	E. Stella	E. Stella	

4th Floor, Centrum House, 108-114 Dundas Street, Edinburgh, EH3 5DQ

© Copyright 2024 ITPE. The concepts and information contained in this document are the property of Energised Environments Limited, ITPE Ltd and Xero Energy Limited, trading as ITPEnergised. Use or copying of this document in whole or in part without the written permission of ITPEnergised companies constitutes an infringement of copyright unless otherwise expressly agreed by contract.

Limitation: This document has been prepared solely for the use of the Client and any party with whom a warranty agreement has been executed, or an assignment has been agreed. No other parties may rely on the contents of this document without written approval from ITPEnergised for which a charge may be applicable. ITPEnergised accepts no responsibility or liability for the consequences of use of this document for any purpose other than that for which it was commissioned, nor the use of this document by any third party with whom an agreement has not been executed.

The contents of this document are confidential to the intended recipient and may not be disclosed. This document may contain confidential information. If received in error, please delete it without making or distributing copies. Opinions and information that do not relate to the official business of Energised Environments Limited registered at 4th Floor, Centrum House, 108-114 Dundas Street, Edinburgh, EH3 5DQ or ITPE Ltd., registered at St. Brandon's House 29 Great George Street, Bristol BS1 5QT, or Xero Energy Limited, registered at 60 Elliot Street Glasgow, G3 8DZ trading as ITPEnergised, are not endorsed by the company or companies.



Contents

Docu	ment II	ntormation	2
1.	Intro	duction	5
	1.1	Overview	5
	1.2	Scope and Objectives	5
	1.3	The Order Limits	6
	1.4	The Proposed Development	6
	1.5	Supporting Environmental Management Plans	6
2.	Statu	itory and Policy Considerations	7
	2.1	Legal and Other Requirements	7
	2.2	Management System	7
	2.3	Environmental Policies	7
	2.4	Operational Efficiency	7
3.	Prop	osed Development Operations	8
	3.1	Operation Overview	8
	3.2	Operation Programme	8
	3.3	Working Hours	8
	3.4	General Considerations	8
4.	Mitig	gation and Management Measures	9
	4.1	Flood Risk, Drainage and Surface Water	9
	4.2	Ecology	12
	4.3	Landscape and Visual Amenity	12
	4.4	Noise	13
	4.5	Ground Conditions	14
	4.6	Recreation & Access	15
	4.7	Waste	15
	4.8	Climate Change	15
	4.9	Light	16
5.	Imple	ementation of the OEMP	17
	5.1	Structure, Roles and Responsibility	17
	5.2	Training	17



	5.3	Communication and Consultation	18
	5.4	Incident and Emergency Response	19
6.	Monit	coring and Review of the OEMP	20
	6.1	Monitoring and Reporting	20
	6.2	Management Review	24
	6.3	Environmental Manitoring Program	25



1. Introduction

1.1 Overview

1.1.1 This Outline Operational Environmental Management Plan (OOEMP) has been prepared to support an application for a Development Consent Order (DCO) for the construction, operation, maintenance, and decommissioning of Oakland Farm Solar Park (hereafter referred to as the 'Proposed Development').

1.2 Scope and Objectives

- 1.2.1 A DCO would provide the necessary authorisations and consents for the Proposed Development, a photovoltaic (PV) electricity generating facility with battery energy storage system (BESS) and connection to the grid.
- 1.2.2 The purpose of this OOEMP is to provide an overview of potential environmental impacts of the proposed development, during its operational phase, and describe the management and mitigation measures to protect the environment and sensitive receptors, both on- and off-site, and minimise potential adverse impacts on the environment.
- 1.2.3 The proposed development is likely to become operational (or be commissioned) in phases or parts, and it is envisaged that an OEMP may be prepared, approved and implemented for individual parts or phases of the Proposed Development. As a result, there could be multiple OEMPs prepared in accordance with the parts of this OOEMP.
- 1.2.4 The objectives of this OOEMP are to provide:
 - an overview of the Proposed Development operations;
 - guidance on compliance with relevant environmental legislation and the Applicant policies in the operational phase;
 - a means of implementing appropriate mitigation measures for the key environmental issues;
 - definition of roles and responsibilities of the operational team;
 - Provide a guide for the interaction with relevant government authorities and other relevant stakeholders, including the community during the operational phase of the proposed development; and
 - Provide a basis for monitoring, reporting and maintaining compliance with both the Applicant and regulatory requirements for the proposed development;
- 1.2.5 This OOEMP is a live document. The management strategies and control measures detailed within this document and the supplementary Environmental Management Plans will be reviewed and updated, where necessary, to reflect changes introduced by the Applicant's operational team, site specific outcomes, non-



conformances and recommendations arising out of inspections, meetings and audits.

1.3 The Order Limits

- 1.3.1 The Site is located within the administrative areas of South Derbyshire District Council, in the county of Derbyshire. The proposed development comprises the construction and operation of a solar photovoltaic (PV) electricity generating facility with battery energy storage system (BESS) and connection to the grid.
- 1.3.2 The area of land required for the construction, operation and maintenance, and decommissioning of the proposed development is shown on Figure 1.1: Site Location in Volume 2 of the ES and described in Chapter 4: Project Description, Volume 1 of the ES.

1.4 The Proposed Development

1.4.1 The Proposed Development is described in Chapter 4: Project Description of the ES. The Proposed Development would have a generating capacity of over 50MW and would be situated on 191 hectares of land at Oaklands Farm to the south-east of Walton-on-Trent and to the west of Rosliston in South Derbyshire. The solar farm itself, comprising photovoltaic (PV) panel arrays, a central electricity substation and Battery Energy Storage System together with access, landscaping and other works would be located on 135 hectares of agricultural land currently in use for arable production and grazing. A high voltage underground electricity cable would then run through land at Fairfield Farm and Park Farm to the north to connect the solar farm to the national grid via an electricity substation located at the former Drakelow Power Station which sits south of Burton-upon-Trent.

1.5 Supporting Environmental Management Plans

- 1.5.1 A series of environmental management plans will be developed to support the OEMP following receipt of the DCO. Plans which will be included in the final version of the OEMP include:
 - Visitor Management Plan;
 - Operational Health and Safety Plan;
 - Operational Emergency Response Plan;
 - Operational Waste Management Plan;
 - Outline Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) (Appendix 5.6 of ES); and,
 - Outline Battery Safety Management Plan (Appendix 4.6 of ES).



2. Statutory and Policy Considerations

- 2.1.1 The Applicant is committed to complying with its legal obligations and other voluntary commitments. Compliance with applicable regulatory requirements concerning the operations of the Solar Farm will be achieved through:
 - identifying and accessing legal and other requirements which are directly applicable to the organisation;
 - consulting and involving relevant government agencies;
 - internally communicating relevant information regarding legal and other requirements;
 - continually auditing, reviewing, and upgrading company systems, management plans and supporting documentation; and,
 - providing relevant training.

2.2 Legal and Other Requirements

- 2.2.1 Considerable environmental legislation applies to the operational stage of the proposed development. The expectation is that all relevant legislation, including requirements for licences, permits and / or consents shall be identified.
- 2.2.2 For each significant environmental aspect, the relevant applicable environmental legislation and regulations will be identified from, but not limited to, the list provided below:
 - The Environmental Authorisations Regulations 2018;
 - Anti-Pollution Works Regulations 2003;
 - The Waste Regulations 2011.
- 2.2.3 Health and Safety at Work Act 1974The list of relevant legislation and its applicability to the proposed development will be reviewed and updated following receipt of planning permission.

2.3 Management System

2.3.1 This section will be completed with relevant information from the integrated management system once the system has been finalised.

2.4 Environmental Policies

2.4.1 This section will be completed with relevant information from the integrated management system once the system has been finalised.

2.5 Operational Efficiency

2.5.1 This section will be completed with relevant information from the integrated management system once the system has been finalised.



3. Proposed Development Operations

3.1 Operation Overview

- 3.1.1 During the operational phase, activity within the Proposed Development will be minimal and will be restricted principally to vegetation management, equipment maintenance and servicing, replacement and renew of any components that fail, and monitoring. It is anticipated that maintenance and servicing would include the inspection, removal, reconstruction, refurbishment or replacement of faulty or broken equipment to ensure the continued effective operation of the Scheme.
- 3.1.2 Along the Grid Connection Route operational activity will consist of routine inspections (schedule to be determined) and any reactive maintenance such as where a cable has been damaged. It is anticipated that there will be up to 3 permanent staff onsite during the operational phase of the Solar Farm, resulting in a small number of traffic movements per day. There will be no access to the Site for the general public. The proposed permissive path which runs through the Site will be fenced and secure to prevent unauthorized access.

3.2 Operation Programme

3.2.1 Operation of the Proposed Development is expected to start following construction, expected in 2027. The Proposed Development will operate for approximately 40 years, with decommissioning assumed for the purposes of the environmental impact assessment to be not earlier than 2067.

3.3 Working Hours

3.3.1 The Solar Farm will generally be manned during normal working hours (9 to 5pm) 5 days a weeks.

3.4 General Considerations

3.4.1 Access Controls

3.4.2 The Applicant will display signage to advise visitors and the general public that relevant areas of the proposed site are private and not for public use.

3.4.3 Additional signage across the proposed site will include:

- Directional and speed limit signs for vehicles; and,
- Adequate signage to satisfy work health and safety requirements.
- 3.4.4 Security will be maintained by fences with gates locked at all times. Fences will be inspected routinely for signs of damage and/or intruder entry.

3.4.5 **Plant and Equipment Maintenance**

3.4.6 All plant and equipment installed or used within the proposed development will be operated and maintained in accordance with the Proposed Development



requirements. This includes all processing infrastructure and pollution control equipment, as well as track and access track within the Proposed Development.

3.4.7 Fire Prevention

3.4.8 If an on-site fire occurs, all necessary measures to extinguish associated fires will be implemented immediately. Adequate fire prevention resources have been put in place (included in the Outline Battery Safety Management Plan), and all personnel are able to access fire-fighting equipment and manage fire outbreaks at any location at the Proposed Development in accordance with the guidance provided in the Emergency Response Plan, which will be prepared prior to operations in consultation with the local emergency services.

3.4.9 Litter Control

3.4.10 Litter control will be carried out in accordance with the Waste Management Plan.

4. Mitigation and Management Measures

- 4.1.1 This section of the OOEMP sets out the mitigation and management measures to be included as a minimum in the detailed OEMP. It also identifies where monitoring is proposed to assess the effectiveness of the mitigation measures.
- 4.1.2 The operational activities could have the following potential environmental impacts:
 - Flood Risk, Drainage and Surface Water: Impacts on water quality in waterbodies that may receive surface water runoff and hydromorphological impacts to waterbodies and effects on local flow regimes due to change from intensive agriculture and introduction of structures on site
 - <u>Cultural Heritage</u>: Impacts on the setting of heritage assets due to the presence of the Proposed Development within their setting.
 - <u>Ecology</u>: disturbance to wildlife from artificial lighting.
 - <u>Landscape and Visual Amenity</u>: change to landscape character and visibility of operational activities.
 - Noise: Noise from operational equipment.
 - Ground conditions: Potential for pollutants to enter the ground.
 - <u>Waste</u>: Potential to impact on surrounding environment if not stored and managed appropriately.

4.2 Flood Risk, Drainage and Surface Water

4.2.1 In accordance with planning policy guidance runoff from the Order limits requires attenuation to ensure no increase in surface water discharge rates and to provide water quality treatment of runoff water. The Drainage Strategy at Appendix 8.1 of the ES also outlines how firewater runoff will be managed. It also includes detail on



- operation and management of the drainage infrastructure in order to ensure that they continue to function effectively throughout the lifetime of the Scheme.
- 4.2.2 There will be a minimum buffer of 8 m around watercourses (measured from the water/channel edge under normal flows) within which there will be no built development.
- 4.2.3 The design of the Proposed Development has included measures to avoid and minimise the risk of water pollution during its operation.
- 4.2.4 SuDS features will be utilised to ensure the surface water drainage strategy adequately attenuates and treats runoff from the Proposed Development, whilst minimising flood risk to the Order limits and surrounding areas.

Potential Impact	Mitigation Measures and monitoring requirements
	Pollution control Regular inspections and maintenance of all equipment will be undertaken in order to identify any leaks or damage early. Any panels which require maintenance / replacement will be removed before there is any leakage of chemicals from the sealed units. Any leaks will be dealt with in a way that is compliant with the prevailing environmental legislation.
Impacts on water quality due to run off and spillages (including fire-fighting water).	Control of fire-fighting water To mitigate risks from contaminated water during a fire event at the BESS and substation compounds, these areas will be impermeable, with water diverted into an underground storage area which can be isolated if required. During normal rainfall events, water from these tanks will be discharged at a rate limited to the greenfield runoff rates for the same event, with outfalls into the drainage ditch northwest of the compounds.
	Disposal of foul water Wastewater from the on-site welfare facilities would be managed by a self-contained independent non-mains domestic storage and / or treatment system.
Impact on the hydrological	The key principle of the Outline Drainage Strategy is source control whereby all surface water run-off is discharged to ground as close to the point of interception as possible. This will include:
regime brought about by the introduction of structures	 solar panel arrays will allow incidental run-off to infiltrate to ground below the panels. all trackways constructed to be permeable (i.e. unsealed), and as such will maintain infiltration capacity similar to the bare soil cover.



Balantalla and	The state of the s
Potential Impact	Mitigation Measures and monitoring requirements
	 where concrete pads are required a gravel-filled drainage trench shall be constructed around the structure, thus providing soakaway capacity equivalent to the infiltration capacity lost beneath the structure. In terms of flood risk, parts of the Proposed Development remain at risk of flooding from surface water, including from small channels and ditches within the Site. Solar panels are unlikely to be affected by this flooding, should it occur, and no specific mitigation is required to protect them other than ensuring the bottom edge of the panels is not within 300mm of the ground within the mapped surface water flood risk area.
	Inverters, transformers and the Proposed Development's substation will not be sited within the fluvial or surface water flood risk areas.
	Runoff from the solar panels will be allowed to percolate into the underlying soil as occurs at present. Runoff from the panels can be intercepted and buffered by the vegetation growing underneath the panels and retained prior to infiltration as with the greenfield situation.
	All field access tracks will be constructed of compacted gravel such that they are permeable to negate impacts to drainage. Each track shall be designed fall to a gravel filled longitudinal trench into which excess water will flow. These trenches will act as attenuation and treatment prior to infiltration.
	Maintenance of drainage system The proposed drainage system should be regularly cleaned and maintained to ensure their function. This is set out on
	and maintained to ensure their function. This is set out on more detail in Appendix 8.1 FRA and Outline Drainage Strategy. Examples include: - removing debris, silt accumulation and leaves to
	avoid blockagesremoval or control of tree roots were encroaching on
	infrastructurereplace damaged or failed pipes/gullies/manholes.Inspect permeable paving for weed growth



4.3 Ecology

4.3.1 An Outline Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP) has been prepared to manage the areas of landscaping to maximise the benefits for biodiversity, and the monitoring requirements to ensure the successful establishment of the proposed planning. All operational activities will be managed in accordance with the following requirements.

Potential Impact	Mitigation measure and monitoring requirements
	The Outline LEMP at Appendix 5.6 of the ES includes detailed information on the management of habitats and vegetation on Site to ensure management is undertaken at an appropriate time of year to avoid unnecessary disturbance or incidental injuring to species.
Disturbance to wildlife and habitats surrounding the Site.	Avoidance of, or any work subject to survey within, the nesting bird period i.e. March to August (inclusive) for any management activities within vegetated areas. Any management of vegetated areas, or works that could cause disturbance to nesting birds within the nesting bird period, should be subject to checks for the presence of any nests by a suitably qualified ornithologist, prior to such works in line with legislative requirements.
Disturbance to Designated sites within the Site.	Dependent upon the management activities, if active nests are found, dependent upon the bird species and status of the nesting attempt, then appropriate buffer zones may need to be imposed. Advice will be sought from an appropriately qualified ornithologist and the area monitored until the young birds have fledged.
Disturbance to wildlife from artificial lighting.	Reasonable avoidance measures for any management activities that have the potential to cause disturbance to badger setts or roosting bats, including appropriate buffers, up to 30 m, around any Badger setts, or 15 m around trees with bat roost potential. Advice should be sought from an appropriately qualified ecologist. To avoid disturbance from lighting, there will be no operational lighting other than alarm lights on transformer stations that are only activated in case of trespass or attempted theft.

4.4 Landscape and Visual Amenity

4.4.1 The Outline LEMP sets out the measures proposed to mitigate potential visual impacts.



4.4.2 A detailed LEMP will be prepared in accordance with the principles of the Outline LEMP and will include measures to ensure landscape mitigation and enhancements are established and maintained into and throughout the operational phase.

Potential Impact	Mitigation measure and monitoring requirements
Visual effects on local residents, users of local roads.	No operational lighting is proposed other than alarm lights on transformer stations that are only activated in case of trespass or attempted theft. Existing vegetation and new vegetation delivered through the LEMP will be managed to ensure its continued presence and to aid the screening of low-level views into the Order limits.

4.5 Noise

4.5.1 The operational noise will be managed in accordance with the following requirements.

Potential Impact	Mitigation measure and monitoring requirements
Noise and vibration From operational equipment	The design specification of any operational plant will consider noise emissions in their selection; the quietest plant will be selected where other non-acoustic design considerations allow (subject to available acoustic data). Plant has been selected to provide oversizing and redundancy to ensure equipment is operating below maximum capacity where highest noise levels typically occur. The use of enclosures, local screening, mufflers, and silencers will also be considered where appropriate. Should the noise exhibit any such acoustic features then the relevant penalty/ correction should be applied in accordance with BS 4142. Plant such as the substation and batteries will be designed to have minimal tonal, impulsive or intermittent features. The developer will be required to undertake and submit an operational noise assessment to the local planning authority prior to the start of works on site (DCO requirement 15).
	operational noise. Contact details for the Site manager shall be provided to nearby residents.
	Should a noise complaint be received, the Site manager will review and initially investigate if any maintenance or reasonably practical



action can be undertaken to rectify the source of the complaint and ensure that it is undertaken in a reasonable timeframe. If the Site manager cannot determine appropriate action to take, and it is considered that there may be a valid complaint and/or the complaint continues, a competent noise practitioner (a member of the Institute of Acoustics) shall be engaged at the earliest opportunity (and within 28 days) to investigate the complaint, including any measurements or monitoring, to determine if any agreed noise limits are being exceeded and provide an independent view as to whether any practicable steps should be undertaken to reduce the noise.

Any complaints and action taken shall be recorded in a register, with details of any remedials action taken, and progress reported back directly to the complainant.

Where operational equipment is observed to be significantly noisier than expected during routine site inspections, this will be also be recorded in the register and action undertaken within a reasonable timeframe to reduce the noise, which is proportionate to the likelihood of the noise disturbing neighbours."

4.6 Ground Conditions

4.6.1 The design of the Proposed Development has included measures to avoid and minimise the risk of pollution to the ground and water during its operation.

undertaken in order to identify any leaks or damage early. An panels which require maintenance / replacement will be removed before there is any leakage of chemicals from the sealed units. Any leaks will be dealt with in a way that is	Potential Impact	Mitigation measure and monitoring requirements
Potential for pollutants to enter the ground. detailed OEMP(s) will include a regular schedule for visual inspection of the panels and all other solar; During the operational phase there would be surface water runoff from the permanent structures, roofs, solar PV panels	· ·	removed before there is any leakage of chemicals from the sealed units. Any leaks will be dealt with in a way that is compliant with the prevailing environmental legislation. The detailed OEMP(s) will include a regular schedule for visual inspection of the panels and all other solar; During the operational phase there would be surface water runoff from the permanent structures, roofs, solar PV panels and access roads. An outline drainage strategy (Appendix 8.1 of the ES) has been prepared which considers water quality. A minimum buffer of 8m around all watercourses (measured from the water/channel edge under normal flows) has been



Inverters and transformers will be installed on concrete bases with suitable bunding where appropriate.

4.7 Recreation & Access

- 4.7.1 The Cross Britain Way (a Public Right of Way) will remain open to the public during the operational phase. A new Permissive Path will provide North-South links across the Site.
- 4.7.2 Planting identified in the LEMP will help to mitigate visual impacts for road users and users of the PRoW and permissive path network.

Potential Impact	Mitigation measure and monitoring requirements
	Maintaining access to all existing PRoW within the Order limits, with no diversions or closures.
Impacts to the public using Public Rights of	Providing a permissive path within the Site to improve connections and desire lines for users.
Way.	Where the internal maintenance route crosses the existing PRoW network and permissive path or local access roads (such as by
Visual Impacts for road and PRoW users.	providing gates), permitting only operational traffic to utilise these internal routes within the Order limits. Operational traffic should give-way to other users (pedestrians and road users) when utilising the crossing points. Visibility will be maximised between operational vehicles and other users, with warning signage provided if required.

4.8 Waste

- 4.8.1 Materials requiring removal from the Order limits during operation would be transported using licensed carriers and records kept, detailing the types and quantities of waste moved and the destinations of this waste, in accordance with the relevant regulations.
- 4.8.2 It is expected that a Site Waste Management Plan will be developed for the operational phase to ensure the waste hierarchy is followed with waste reduction and reuse/recycling prioritised over landfill.

4.9 Climate Change

4.9.1 Climate Change related activities will be managed in accordance with the following requirements.



Potential Impact	Mitigation measure and monitoring requirements
	Regular planned maintenance of the Scheme will be conducted to optimise efficiency of the Scheme infrastructure.
	Increasing recyclability by segregating waste to be re-used and recycled where reasonably practicable;
Greenhouse gas emissions from the operational maintenance activities required	Operating the Scheme in such a way as to minimise the creation of waste and maximise the use of alternative materials with lower embodied carbon such as locally sourced products and materials with a higher recycled content;
during operation of Scheme. Increased ambient temperature due to	Encouraging the use of lower carbon modes of transport by identifying and communicating local bus connections and pedestrian and cycle access routes to/from the Scheme to all staff, and providing appropriate facilities for the safe storage of cycles;
climate change.	Liaising with operational personnel for potential to implement staff minibuses and car sharing options;
	Switching off vehicles and plant when not in use and ensuring vehicles conform to current EU emissions standards; and
	Conducting regular planned maintenance of the Scheme to optimise efficiency.

4.10 Light

4.10.1 Operational light will be managed in accordance with the following requirements.

Potential Impact	Mitigation measure and monitoring requirements
Disturbance from artificial lighting.	No operational lighting is being proposed other than alarm lights on all transformer stations that are only activated in case of theft.



5. Implementation of the OEMP

5.1 Structure, Roles and Responsibility

5.1.1 Roles and Responsibilities

5.1.2 All staff will be made aware of the manner in which the site is to be operated and managed, to ensure compliance with the OEMP. A summary of the authorities and environmental responsibilities of key personnel for the operation of the proposed development is outlined below:

5.1.2.1 Environmental Officer or Site nominee

- Undertake and/or co-ordinate environmental monitoring requirements specified within the OEMP;
- Ensure that environmental records and files are maintained;
- Ensure that environmental non-conformances are recorded and actioned;
- Review and updates the OEMP and associated documentation, as required; and
- Collate and maintain records of complaints and respond accordingly.

5.1.2.2 Subcontractors

- Comply with all legal and contractual requirements;
- Comply with management / supervisory directions; and
- Participate in induction and training as directed.

5.1.2.3 All Personnel

- Comply with the relevant Acts, Regulations and Standards;
- Comply with Applicant policies and procedures;
- Promptly report any non-conformances and/or environmental incidents to management; and
- Undergo induction and training in environmental awareness as required.

5.2 Training

- 5.2.1 All employees and subcontractors (as necessary) will receive suitable environmental training, to ensure they are aware of their responsibilities and are competent to carry out their work. Training will be provided during site inductions and on an ongoing basis as required. All inductions and ongoing training shall be recorded. Training will include the following areas:
 - BayWa environmental and sustainability policy;
 - OEMP and related documents:
 - Significant risks, environmental aspects, impacts and controls;



- Emergency procedure and response; and
- Understanding legal obligations.

5.3 Communication and Consultation

5.3.1 The Applicant is committed to meaningful stakeholder engagement and will work in collaboration with relevant consultees and the local community to resolve any issues that impact local environmental amenity as a result of operation of the proposed development.

5.3.2 **Government Bodies**

- 5.3.3 The following government agencies will be consulted with in relation to the operations of the proposed development and the requirements of this OEMP:
 - Environment Agency
 - Fire Brigade; and,
 - LAs EHOs.

5.3.4 **Community**

- 5.3.5 The Applicant will ensure that the local community is kept informed of the progress of the project in a pro-active and responsive manner. This will be by way of communications to local parish councils, local newsletters, leaflets, newspaper advertisements, and community notice boards to include information such as:
 - Operating hours;
 - Contact details (telephone number);
 - Any major proposed works which may impact the community.

5.3.6 **Complaints Handling**

- 5.3.7 Close liaison will be maintained between residences near the proposed Site to provide effective feedback in regard to perceived problems.
- 5.3.8 A community telephone line and or email contact will be used to receive public feedback, including complaints.
- 5.3.9 Complaints or adverse reports received from any external source will be recorded and the Site Manager and/or Environmental Officer will be notified for response. Records of all complaints will be kept for at least four years after the complaint was made.
- 5.3.10 All received public complaints (either written or verbal) will be documented to record the:
 - Nature and extent of the complaint;
 - Method by which the complaint was made;
 - Name and address of the person lodging the complaint;



- Details of all related factors including location, dates, frequency, duration, site conditions and effects of the complaint; and
- Action taken to address the complaint including follow up contact with the complainant.
- 5.3.11 The Site Manager and/or Environmental Officer will record the details of all complaints received in an up-to-date log-book to ensure that a response is provided to the complainant within 24 hours or as soon as practicable.
- 5.3.12 The Site Manager, or their nominee, shall investigate and determine appropriate corrective/preventive actions to be taken to address all complaints. The complainant will be informed in writing of the results of the investigation and action to be taken to rectify or address the matter(s). Where no action is taken the reasons why are to be recorded.
- 5.3.13 Corrective actions may involve supplementary monitoring to identify the source of the non-conformance, and/or may involve modification of operational techniques to avoid any recurrence or minimise its adverse effects.

5.4 Incident and Emergency Response

- 5.4.1 A key objective of this OEMP is to identify potential risks, and to develop, and maintain measures to manage them.
- 5.4.2 The Applicant's approach to incident and emergency response management includes:
 - Risk Analysis The identification of hazards and risks that could impact the community, environmental and operational implications.
 - Prevention The planning and documentation of prevention and mitigation activities for all major hazards, and allocation of responsibility for their implementation.
 - Preparedness The development, implementation and review of specific incident management plans and processes to manage identified risks, the training of staff, and establishment of facilities to ensure the company can respond effectively to an incident.
 - Response The issue of warnings and establishment of processes for effective notification of incidents, and mobilisation of resources to combat the incident or threat.
 - Recovery The return to normal operations, management of debriefs, and implementation of lessons learnt from the response process.
- 5.4.3 The following priorities will be adopted when dealing with an incident / crisis:
 - Protection of human life and welfare;
 - Protection of the environment; and
 - Protection of the Applicant s assets.



- 5.4.4 Potential threats to the environment or public health that may arise in relation to the operation of the proposed Site:
 - power or other utility failure;
 - fire;
 - natural disaster;
 - surface water contamination, and;
 - traffic accident.

5.4.5 **Emergency Response Management**

5.4.6 An Emergency Response Plan would be completed by the Principal Contractor prior to construction commencing prior to operations commencing the Applicant (owner/operator) would produce an Operational Emergency Response Plan.

6. Monitoring and Review of the OEMP

6.1 Monitoring and Reporting

6.1.1 Regular environmental inspections will be undertaken to ensure that environmental controls have been implemented, meet specification, and are being maintained in accordance with the current legislations as summarised in Table 5.1 below.

Table 5.1 SSC Environmental Testing and Inspection schedule

Action	Туре	Frequency
External visual inspection	A full visual review of the outside of the unit housing the inverter and/or transformer must be completed. The review must include the walls, roof, paintwork and any platforms and needs to identify any visual defects, damage, discolouration and corrosion. Any defects sighted need to be remedied immediately and the affected area returned to its 'as new' state and finished with manufacturer approved paint.	Monthly
Inverter, Transformer and Switchgear Housing	The oil tray must be checked for any signs of damage, corrosion, leakage, dirt or water. Dirt must be cleared if possible. Water	Monthly



Action	Туре	Frequency
	must be removed when above emptying valve	
Transformers	An overall visual inspection of the transformer unit must be completed. The inspection must look for any damage, leakages or rust and checking for anomalous noises, smells or discolouration including the full body of the transformer and all joints and seals. The oil level, oil temperature and winding temperature must also be checked and recorded where accessible. Leaks must be reported to the owner's representative and remedied as soon as practicable. Any damage or rust must be assessed for severity and reported to the owner's representative. If considered minor the defect must be monitored monthly and remedied during annual servicing. The anti-vibration pads supporting the transformer must be inspected visually for wear or damage.	Monthly
Site Access, fencing and drainage	The complete track network of the site is to be visually inspected for damage or flooding/sitting water. Potholes are to be made good. Any issues sighted must be reported to the owner's representative along with a practical plan for remedy.	Quarterly
Site Access, fencing and drainage	The full perimeter fence must be visually inspected along with any internal fences and all	Quarterly



Action	Туре	Frequency
	gates. The inspection will look for any damage, corrosion/rot, movement or tilting of the fencing, fence posts, bracings and gates. The gates will be confirmed as securely attached with hinges in working order, free of corrosion, lubricated and running smoothly. Gate locks and drop bolts must be functional and secure. Signage along the perimeter fence warning of electrical danger and CCTV operation must be in place and clearly visible at all approaches to the site. Fallen or missing signs must be replaced. The site identification and contact sign must be in place at the sites entrance and legible. Q 03.	
Site drainage	Site drainage mechanisms and SUDS to be maintained in line with the flood risk assessment a landscaping plan approved by the Local Planning Authority. During routine inspection all swales, ditches, drains and culverts are to be confirmed as free from debris and obstruction. Any blockages are to be cleared immediately.	Quarterly
Land Management status	General check of the conditions on site twice a year.	Twice a year
Weed Management	Vegetation will be removed below panel tables in line with stipulations of the site specific LEMP.	X
Hedge and tree maintenance	Trees to be managed to ensure no shading of the PV Plant. Any pruning will take place in January-February each year.	X



Action	Туре	Frequency
	Trees to be pruned in accordance with site specific LEMP. Additional watering (beyond rainfall) will be provided where it becomes evident that plants are beginning to suffer from water stress. Any hedgerow plants that fail shall be replaced with similar sized plants of the same species.	

6.1.2 At completion of each inspection, any corrective actions required will be recorded and managed in a timely manner (Table 5.2).

Table 5.2 Correction Action Timetable

Priority	Action	Timeframe
Low	May not require immediate action. Monitor situation and schedule control action	Action typically required within 15 to 29 days
Medium	Control actions as soon as possible	Action typically required within 7 to 14 days
High	Significant and immediate control	Action typically required within 1-7 days

6.1.3 Compliance with all environmental regulatory criteria is a priority for the Applicant. Specific compliance obligations will be detailed and controlled in the supporting Environmental Management Plans. Environmental non-compliances will be managed on a case-by case basis depending on the severity of the incident as described in the Table 5.3 below.



Table 5.3

Incident Classification	Investigation Team or Person	If the incident involves an injury
 Insignificant Minor Moderate 	A suitable competent person from the organisational unit or functional area where the incident occurred.	An Injury/ Occupational Illness Report form must also be completed by the relevant Line Manager using the short investigation form completed in the file register
4. Major 5. Catastrophic (Crisis)	Appropriately independent qualified person appointed as a single Lead Investigator	Long investigation form to be completed in the file register for any injuries/occupational illness

6.1.4 Environmental Audits

- 6.1.5 Audits will be undertaken on a regular basis to ensure that the Applicant meets compliance objectives, as well as to support continuous improvement. The audits will:
 - assess the effectiveness of the OEMP in meeting operational policies and legislative and industry standards;
 - determine whether the measures and/or corrective actions carried out conform to the objectives of the OEMP;
 - assess the adequacy of implemented controls to minimise high risk environmental issues or operational activities; and
 - identify areas for continuous improvement.
- 6.1.6 Audit reports will be maintained to enable non-conformances and opportunities for improvement identified to be recorded, reported and responded to.

6.2 Management Review

- 6.2.1 Management reviews of the OEMP will be scheduled annually to assess the continuing suitability, adequacy and effectiveness of the measures implemented.
- 6.2.2 The inputs to the management review process shall include (but not be limited to):
 - audit findings; and
 - incident management and investigation of non-conformance events, incidents, near misses and management of all complaints received.
- 6.2.3 The output from the management review shall include any decisions and actions related to:



- possible changes to the management plans, procedures, practices, objectives and targets associated with the environmental management of the proposed development;
- improvement of the effectiveness of the management system and its processes; and
- resource needs.

6.3 Environmental Monitoring Program

- 6.3.1 The implementation of monitoring requirements will be the responsibility of the Site Manager or nominee.
- 6.3.2 Relevant monitoring requirements will be established on revision of the OOEMP and included as Appendix.
- 6.3.3 All sampling strategies and protocols undertaken as part of the monitoring program will be conducted in line with industry best practices. Monitoring will be performed by the Environmental Manager or other relevant party in accordance with the requirements set out in this OEMP and supporting EMPs.
- 6.3.4 Where monitoring and measuring devices are used, these will be calibrated in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Records of calibration will be maintained, and the calibration status of the device will be clearly communicated.





ITPEnergised is a leading, international consultancy offering renewable energy, natural resources, environmental, engineering, technical advisory and asset management services for clients with onshore and offshore projects.

Visit the ITPEnergised group offices in:

Bristol, London, Edinburgh, Glasgow, Buenos Aries, Lisbon, Madrid, Delhi, Beijing, Canberra, Auckland

Sectors:

Onshore Renewables & Storage | Offshore Renewables | Oil & Gas Property & Urban Regeneration | Infrastructure | Industrial Manufacturing

